





Technical Cooperation Group 10th meeting 11 December 2023

TCG-10/W/4

UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics Rules of Procedure









INTRODUCTION

These Rules of Procedure are intended to assist participants in planning and conducting the work of meetings of the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics and to facilitate the adoption of a written report embodying such recommendations and decisions as may emerge from the deliberations.

NATURE OF THE MEETING

Rule 1. Classification of the meeting

According to the « Regulations for the general classification of the various categories of meetings convened by UNESCO », adopted by the General Conference at its 14th session (14C/Resolution 23) and amended at its 18th, 25th and 33rd sessions (hereinafter called « the Regulations »), the meeting is designated to be a Category IV meeting, i.e. « International Congress ».

Rule 2. Frequency of the meeting

Meetings of the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics shall be held in principle every three years. The Director-General of UNESCO, acting through the Director of the UNESCO Institute for Statistics (UIS), and in coordination with the Assistant Director-General of Education, hereinafter collectively called « the Secretariat », and notably working through the Technical Coordination Group (TCG), shall determine the timing and convening of the meetings pursuant to the programme and budget adopted by the General Conference.

Rule 3. Agenda

A provisional agenda shall be prepared and submitted to the meeting for adoption. Subject to these Rules, the provisional agenda shall be prepared by the TCG in coordination with the Secretariat. It shall include items proposed by the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics at a previous meeting; items proposed by the TCG or the Secretariat, and items proposed by Member States and Associate Members of UNESCO, notably through preparatory regional meetings, or other concerned parties referred to in Rule 4 below. The first item on the provisional agenda shall be the adoption of the agenda.

II. PARTICIPANTS

Rule 4. Chief participants

These shall be:







- a) either designated individually by the Director-General by an invitation to participate in the work of the meeting, notably including members of national statistical bodies and authorities working in the spheres of education statistics, learning assessment and development
- b) or admitted by the Director-General on signifying their desire to participate in the work of the meeting through the governments of Member States or through the organizations of learned societies of which they are a member

The Secretariat may enter into consultations with government authorities in Member States or with National Commissions for UNESCO or request them to submit names of one or more persons wishing to participate. Invitees shall as a general rule be nationals of Member States or Associate Members of UNESCO or of States Members of the United Nations.

Rule 5. Representatives and observers

Member States and Associate Members of UNESCO may send observers to the meeting. The United Nations and other organizations of the UN system with which UNESCO has concluded mutual representation agreements may send representatives to the meeting. Other invitations to attend as observers may be extended to organizations of the UN system with which UNESCO has not concluded mutual representation agreements; intergovernmental organizations, regional statistical bodies, and with international non-governmental organizations in accordance with the Directives concerning UNESCO's partnership with international non-governmental organizations.

III. VOTING

Rule 6. The work of Category IV meetings does not usually involve the exercise of the right to vote. However, when deemed necessary, the meeting shall vote on certain questions, at which each participant invited or admitted to attend the work of the meeting shall have one vote.

IV. ORGANIZATION OF THE MEETING

Rule 7. Purpose

The purpose of meetings of the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics is to reflect on progress and experience relating to the pursuit of international developments in education statistics; promote common understanding of recent methodological developments; achieve broad outreach and capture Member States' needs and demands; coordinate international cooperation in education statistics; provide an opportunity for the community of practice to meet; identify potential process improvements, and discuss future agenda.

Rule 8. Elections

8.1 The meeting shall elect a Chairperson, one or more vice-Chairpersons and a Rapporteur. These Officers, together with the chairpersons of the working groups of the TCG, shall constitute the Bureau of the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics.







8.2 Provisional arrangements concerning the inaugural meeting of the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics are as follows: the Chairperson of the Governing Board of the UIS shall call the meeting to order and proceed immediately with the election of the Conference Chairperson by putting to the floor for approval the name of a senior participant from among the attendees. The newly elected Chairperson shall immediately assume his/her position and proceed first with the adoption of the agenda, and thereafter with the completion of the election of the Conference Officers (one or more vice chairpersons and a rapporteur), and the adoption of the Rules of Procedure.

V. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

Rule 9. Structure of the meeting

The UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics shall meet in plenary and in public. It may establish such subsidiary organs (committees, working groups) as it may deem necessary for the smooth and timely conduct of its business.

Duties of the Chairperson

10.1. The Chairperson shall open and close each session of the meeting. He/she shall direct the discussions, ensure observance of these Rules and accord or withdraw the right to speak. He shall rule on points of order and, subject to the present Rules, shall control proceedings and the maintenance of order. He may ascertain the sense of the meeting and shall, if necessary, put questions to the vote.

10.2 If the Chairperson is absent or unable to attend, he/she shall be replaced by one of the vice-Chairpersons who, acting in this capacity, shall have the same powers and duties as the Chairperson.

Rule 11. Quorum

- 11.1. At the meeting a quorum shall consist of a majority of the chief participants referred to in Rule 4.
- 11.2. If, after five minutes' adjournment, there is still no quorum as above defined, the Chairperson may request the agreement of all chief participants actually present to temporarily waive paragraph 10.1 of this Rule.

Rule 12. Order and time-limit of interventions

The Chairperson shall call upon speakers in the order in which they signify their wish to speak. For the convenience of the discussions, the Chairperson may limit the time allowed to each speaker. The consent of the Chairperson must be obtained whenever a representative or observer wishes to make a verbal communication.

Rule 13. Working languages







The working languages of the meetings shall be English and French. Other working languages of the General Conference of UNESCO (Arabic, Chinese, Russian, Spanish) shall be foreseen according to circumstances and needs. Interpretation of the discussions and working documents will be provided in the designated languages.

Rule 14. Voting

- 14.1. The seniormost chief participant from each Member State referred to in Rule 4 shall have one vote.
- 14.2 The Chairperson shall summarize the general import of the discussions. If one or more of the participants referred to in Rule 4 are not in agreement with the conclusions, their views and the grounds may, at their request, be summarized in the report of the meeting.
- 14.3. Decisions requiring a vote shall be adopted by a simple majority of the participants referred to in Rule 4 who are present and voting.
- 14.4 For the purpose of the present Rules, the expression « participants referred to in Rule 4 who are present and voting » shall mean those casting an affirmative or negative vote. Participants abstaining from voting shall be considered as non-voters.
- 14.5 When an amendment to a proposal is moved, the amendment shall be voted on first. When several amendments are moved, the meeting shall first vote on the amendment deemed by the presiding officer to be the furthest removed in substance from the original proposal, and then on the amendment next furthest removed therefrom and so on, until all the amendments have been put to the vote.
- 14.6 A motion is considered an amendment to a proposal if it merely adds to, deletes from or revises part of that proposal.

Rule 15. Publicity of meetings

As a rule, all plenary and subsidiary body meetings shall take place in public, unless otherwise determined by the UNESCO Conference on Education Data and Statistics on a proposal by its Bureau.

Rule 16. Report of the meeting

The conclusions reached by the meeting shall be embodied in a Report which shall be transmitted to the Director-General. Draft proposals/decisions shall first be considered by the Bureau of the Conference before being submitted for adoption to the plenary.

VI. DOCUMENTATION

Rule 17. Each item on the agenda shall in principle be supported by a relevant document concisely setting out the subject at hand and proposing avenues of action and elements of a possible decision by the meeting.





Rule 18. Secretariat

The Secretariat of the meeting shall be provided by UNESCO officials appointed for that purpose by the Director-General of UNESCO acting through the Director of the UIS.

Rule 19. Duties

The Secretariat shall perform all the work necessary for the smooth functioning of the meeting. The Director of the UIS shall serve as Secretary of the meeting.

Rule 20. Statements by the Secretariat

The Secretariat may at any time make to the meeting either oral or written statements concerning any question under consideration by it.

Rule 21. Report

The Secretariat shall provide the necessary support for the preparation and adoption of the Report and ensure its timely and broad dissemination.